
The aim of Delaware County Electric Cooperative, Inc., is to make electric energy and related services 
available to members at the lowest cost consistent with sound economy and good management. 

 

NOTICE OF BOARD MEETING 
 

The regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Delaware County Electric Cooperative, Inc. will be held Tuesday, March 23, 2021 at 4:30 
pm at the Co-op’s office, 5 North Depot Street, Delhi, New York to act on the following agenda. 
 

AGENDA 
I. Opening Business:  

A. Call to Order 
B. Roll Call - Determination of Quorum 
C. Adoption of Agenda [packet page 1] 

 

II. Consent Agenda:  
A. Minutes of February 23, 2021 [packet pages 2- 6] 
B. New Memberships [packet page 7] 
C. Bad Debt Collection Report [packet pages 8-9] 
D. Director Compensation [packet pages 10-11] 
E. Corporate Calendar [packet page 12] 

 

III. Monthly Financial Reports  
A. 2020 YE Financials [packet pages 13-15] 
B. January 2021 Financials [packet pages 16-18] 
C. February 2021 Financials [packet pages 19-21] 

 

IV. General Manager’s Report [packet pages 22-25]  
 

V. Student Delegate Scholarship Program Interview [packet pages 26-42] 
 

VI. CEO Search Committee Report [oral report by Committee Chair Oles] 
 

VII. NRECA Annual Meeting Report [oral report from attendees]  
 

VIII. NRECA CCD Director Training [oral report from Director Tosi]  
 

IX. COVID-19 Report/Update [packet pages 43-46]  
 

X. Current AMI Metering [handout & report from Sullivan] 
 

XI. Line Extension Policy Review [oral report from Sullivan & Cannizzaro] 
 

XII. Strategic Planning Scheduling [Oral report from President Oles]  
 

XIII. Policies 

A. Directors Qualifications and Responsibilities [packet pages 47-53] 
B. Compensation for Board of Directors [packet pages 54-56] 

 

XIV. Revised Budget Presentation [packet pages 57-60] 
 

XV. New Business: 
 

XVI. Future Business:  
 A. Finance Committee Meeting, Tuesday, 4/27/21 @2 pm 
  1. Presentation of 2020 Financials by Stanley “Mike” Roseberry 
  2. Presentation of Compass Modeling by Mark Cannizzaro 
  3. Review of Financial Goals & Objectives 
  4. Review of Formulary Rate Adjustment 
  5. Review of Revised Budget 
 B. Regular Board Meeting, Tuesday, 4/27/21 @ 5 pm 
  1. NYS ACRE Donations 

C. Legislative Conference, 4/19/21 – 4/23/21, online 
D. Virtual April NYAPP Meeting, 4/21/21 to 4/22/21, 10am -12pm both days 
E. NYSRECA Business Meeting & Albany Advocacy Day, TBD 
F. NEAEC Annual Meeting, May 20th, 10:00 am – 12:00 pm, virtual meeting, details to be emailed by Lee Ann Hoad from Steuben  
G. NYSRECA Annual Meeting, July TBD 
H. DCEC Family Fun Day, 8/6/21 at 5 pm, Delhi, NY  
I. Report and update on RESAP from Operations after visit from PREA (August board meeting, 8/24/21) 
J. NRECA Regions 1 & 4, 9/8/21 – 9/10/21, National Harbor, MD (Dates subject to change) 
K. DCEC’s Annual Meeting, 9/10/21  
L. CoBank facilitated Strategic Planning Discussion, date, TBD, Delhi, NY 

 

XVII. Executive Session 
 

XVIII. Adjournment 

Cooperative Stakeholders 
 Members 
 Employees 
 Community 
 Business Partners 

o Suppliers 
o RUS 
o CFC 
o Federated 
o Other 

cooperatives 
o NYSERDA 

 Government 
 Regulators 

1



 Delaware County Electric Cooperative 

Board Meeting Minutes 

February 23, 2021 

 

I. Opening Business: The regular monthly meeting of the Board of Directors of the Delaware 

County Electric Cooperative, Inc. was held February 23, 2021 at the Co-op’s office, 5 North 

Depot Street, Delhi, New York.  

 

 

A. Call to Order: The meeting was called to order at 5:10 p.m. by President Oles. 

 

B. Roll Call - Determination of Quorum:  

      Stephen Oles  P 

Edward Pick Jr.  P    

Paul Menke  P 

Laurie Wehmeyer  P 

Kimberly Tosi  P 

Steve Burnett  P  

Jeffrey Russell  P 

 

DCEC staff members that participated in-person were, DCEC’s Interim 

CEO/General Manager Millie Faulkner, DCEC’s Operations Manager Ryan 

Sullivan and DCEC Line Foreman Mike Pietrantoni. DCEC’s Director Kimberly 

Tosi and DCEC’s Legal Counsel Jeffrey Clark from Bond, Schoeneck and King 

participated via phone conference. 

 

C. Adoption of Agenda: Interim CEO/General Millie Faulkner pointed out a typo on the 

Agenda under XVI. Future Business: A. Regular Board Meeting, Tuesday, 3/23/21 @ 5 

pm, 1. Student Interviews for Scholarship, 2. Review of Compress, should be, 2. Review 

of Compass. The board unanimously agreed to add the following items to the agenda, 

under New Business, B. Visit from Federated Insurance and C. Auditor’s Report. The 

Agenda was universally approved with the above mentioned amendments.   

 

II. Consent Agenda: A motion was made to approve the Consent Agenda by Vice President 

Russell. The motion was seconded by Secretary Pick. The motion passed. 

 

III. Monthly Financial Reports  

A. 2020 YE Income Statement: Interim CEO/General Millie Faulkner remarked that 

the year-end soft close was distributed based on additional margins beyond budgeted 

2



expenses. Interim CEO/General Millie Faulkner mentioned that the management team 

proposes to accelerate the FAS 106 asset write-down by 95k. A motion was made to 

accept the proposed acceleration of the write-down by Secretary Pick. The motion 

was seconded by Treasurer Menke. The motion passed. 

 

B. 2020 YE Balance Sheet: Interim CEO/General Manager Millie Faulkner commented 

that the Paycheck Protection Program loan has been moved to the balance sheet. 

 

C. January 2021 Income Statement: Interim CEO/General Millie Faulkner stated that 

the 2021 budget hasn’t been uploaded yet due to additional corrections presented 

tonight for final approval. 

 

D. January 2021 Balance Sheet: Interim CEO/General Millie Faulkner reported that 

balance sheet is not in balance yet because the 2020 profit margin has not been 

distributed. 

 

IV. General Manager’s Report: President Oles mentioned that when DCEC sees Substitute 

Energy on the power bill that the board would like to see a report of when it appeared and how 

much it costs. Director Burnett inquired if there was a typo on page 14, item 7 and under the 

heading NYSRECA Government Relations Committee and item 4 under NYAPP seems to be the 

same sentence. Mrs. Faulkner explained that that is not a typo and that this item was discussed at 

each the NYSRECA Government Relations Committee meeting and the NYAPP meeting.  

 

V. Nominating Committee Appointments: A motion was made to approve the presented 

Nominating Committee Members by Secretary Pick. The motion was seconded by Director 

Burnett. The motion passed.  

 

VI. CEO Search Committee Report: See attached report from CEO Search Committee.  

 

VII. NYSRECA Report: See attached agenda.  

 

VIII. NEAEC Sponsored Director Training (Jan 26 & 27): The following Directors attended 

the NEAEC Sponsored Director Training on Succession Planning, President Oles, Vice President 

Russell, Director Wehmeyer, and Director Tosi. The Directors agreed that the training was 

appropriate and timely. See attached report.  

  

IX. CoBank – 2021 Director Election: President Oles announced that CoBank sent out an open 

invitation to Co-op directors that may be interested in serving on CoBank’s board of directors. 

President Oles distributed the correspondence to anyone that was interested.   

  

3



X. NYSERDA Grants: Interim CEO/General Manager Millie Faulkner reported that 

NYSERDA has announced the availability of three million dollars’ worth of grants with a 

breakdown of 1 million each year. Mrs. Faulkner added that NYSERDA is now finally 

recognizing Co-ops and municipalities as utilities. Mrs. Faulkner reported that NYSERDA asked 

Co-ops and municipalities to submit ideas for potential project concepts for NYSERDA funding. 

Interim CEO/General Manager Millie Faulkner added that she submitted three concepts on 

behalf of DCEC; grants for EV charging stations at large commercial accounts, grants for 

geothermal heat pumps for local non-profit businesses, and grants for solar systems up to 10 

kWhs for agricultural members. 

 

XI. Line Extension Policy Review: Operations Manager Ryan Sullivan stated that this is the 1
st
 

reading of the Line Extension Policy and that next month it will be presented with recommended 

modifications. 

 

XII. Lineman Apprentice Progression Proposal: Operations Manager Ryan Sullivan and Line 

Forman Mike Pietrantoni presented a proposal to have a tiered progression during the first two 

years of the apprentice program with appropriate salary action. Mr. Sullivan added that this 

proposal is all subject to board approval, budget, and union negotiations. Operations Manager 

added that a new apprentice training school software is being used to evaluate progression. Mr. 

Sullivan stated that this software was recently introduced and added in the progression and 

sequential advancement.  

  

XIII. Staffing Discussion: Interim CEO/General Manager Millie Faulkner presented the Tree 

Crew Foreman, Randy Tweedie’s view on the need for additional staffing for the Tree Crew. 

Operations Manager Ryan Sullivan and Line Foreman Mike Pietrantoni presented a verbal report 

on the reasons why they would recommend a change in the staffing levels. It was stated that this 

discussion will be further considered with additional impacts such as budget.  

 

XIV: Revised Budget Presentation: Interim CEO/General Manager Millie Faulkner circulated 

a handout of the adopted budget based on previously approved budget changes/corrections. A 

motion was made to approve the presented budget corrections by Secretary Pick. The motion 

was seconded by Treasurer Menke. The motion passed. See attached the presented budget 

corrections. 

  

XV. New Business:  

 

A. Corporate Calendar Review: Reviewed.  

 

B. Visit from Federated Insurance: Interim CEO/General Manager Millie Faulkner 

reported that the afternoon of the 23
rd

 herself, the Operations Manager Ryan Sullivan, 

4



and the Line Foreman Mike Pietrantoni gave a tour of the new headquarters to our 

new field representatives from Federated, Lyndon Bailey and Corey Parr. Mr. Bailey 

and Mr. Parr reported they will be conducting four annual crew visits to witness 

crews working. Mr. Bailey and Mr. Parr mentioned that there was an update on the 

software and that they will be back with Jeff Jewel for two regularly scheduled visits 

for office personal. In addition, Mr. Bailey and Mr. Parr briefly explained the use of 

the Federated safe app.  

 

C. Audit Report: Interim CEO/General Manager Millie Faulkner reported that the 

auditors reviewed with her the following items; FAS 106 liability adjustment of 160k, 

work orders from 2019 that need to be closed, acceleration of FAS 106 asset write-

down, accounting of PPP loan, the sale of a million more kWh on seasonal in 2020 

than in 2019, sales tax general ledger reconciliation, and that they will be conducting 

the NRECA audit in April 2021.  

 

XVI. Future Business: 

 A. Regular Board Meeting, Tuesday, 3/23/21 @ 5 pm 

  1. Student Interviews for Scholarship 

 2. Review of Compass 

B. 2021 NRECA PowerXchange (NRECA Annual Meeting) and TechAdvantage 

Experience, 2/22/21 to 3/4/21 online 

C. Legislative Conference, 4/19/21 – 4/23/21, online 

D. Virtual April NYAPP Meeting, 4/21/21 to 4/22/21, 10am -12pm both days 

E. April board meeting, 4/27/21 

1. Audits Report 

2. NYS ACRE Donations 

F. NYSRECA Business Meeting & Albany Advocacy Day, TBD 

G. NEAEC Annual Meeting, May 20
th

, 10:00 am – 12:00 pm, virtual meeting, details 

to be emailed by Lee Ann Hoad from Steuben  

H. NYSRECA Annual Meeting, July TBD 

I. DCEC Family Fun Day, 8/6/21 at 5 pm, Delhi, NY  

J. Report and update on RESAP from Operations after visit from PREA (August 

board meeting, 8/24/21) 

K. NRECA Regions 1 & 4, 9/8/21 – 9/10/21, National Harbor, MD (Dates subject to 

change) 

L. DCEC’s Annual Meeting, 9/10/21  

M. CoBank facilitated Strategic Planning Discussion, date, TBD, Delhi, NY 

N. COVID vaccine for employees if/when it becomes available 

 

5



XVII. Executive Session: A motion was made to go into executive session at 8:40 p.m. by 

Secretary Pick. The board invited the two Managers; DCEC’s Interim CEO/General Manager 

Millie Faulkner and DCEC’s Operation Manager Ryan Sullivan to join the executive session. 

The motion was seconded by Director Wehmeyer. The motion passed. A motion was made to 

come out of executive session at 9:57 p.m. by Secretary Pick. The motion was seconded by 

Director Wehmeyer. The motion passed.  

 

XVIII. Adjournment: There being no further business on the agenda, President Oles adjourned 

the meeting at 9:58 p.m. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Edward “Rusty” Pick, Jr., 

Secretary 

6



 

Delaware County Electric Cooperative, Inc. 
   5 North Depot Street, P. O. Box 471, Delhi, New York 13753-0471 

607-746-2341 
NEW MEMBERSHIPS – March 23, 2021 

ACCT # LOCATION FIRST NAME LAST NAME ADDRESS CITY, STATE, ZIP FORMER/ 
RENTING/ 

NEW SERVICE 
18574-001 JE 2-6-3D Maryanne Ricca 900 Clapper Hollow Rd. Jefferson, NY 12093 Alfred Cozine 
18573001 DA 1-27-14 Krasimir Tsveklev 200 Torsten Ln. Davenport, NY 13750 Michael J. Sanflippo, 

Sr. 
18524-001 GI 2-47-5A Arkaviusz Makowski 30 Berkshire Rd. W. Babylon, NY 11704 New Service  
18517-001 JE 2-14-29 Michael Maiuzzo 225 Wood St. Mahopac, NY 10541 Felice Antignani 
18567-001 GI 2-49-32 Gary Dumond 137 Roxbury Rd. Shippensburg, PA 17257 St. John of San 

Francisco Orthodox 
Ministry 

18563-001 TO 3-46-6 Maxwell A. Phelan 2939 Bullock Hill Rd.  Sidney Center, NY 13839 Judith Saja 
18566-001 KO 2-52-2H Donald J. Martin 5236 County Hughway 

33 
Bloomville, NY 13739 Nathan Stewart 

18568-001 WA 3-28-6B Antoinette King 588 White Hill Rd. Walton, NY 13856 Juan G. Vaillant 
18557-001 KO 2-42-45 Erin Lutz 1074 North Rd. Bloomville, NY 13739 Donald and Kelly Sulas 
18549-001 AN 4-48-26B Anna Daddario 5499 Wolf Hollow Rd.  Andes, NY 13731 New Service  
18564-001 ME 1-86-7 Calvin Roe 659 Hayes Rd. Delhi, NY 13753 Nicholas Campbell 
18437-001 ME 1-66-2 Alan  Soules 861 Palmer Hill Rd. Meridale, NY 13806 Michael Scarimbolo 
18556-001 DE 4-28-5E Erasmo Sorcigli 155 Wolverine St.  Staten Island, NY 10306 Megan Munson 
18565-001 MA 3-42-9 Valerio Pastro 216 Stillson Rd. Bainbridge, NY 13733 Louis K. Lieberman 
18559-001 AN 5-51-7B Tyler Tamburo 177 Gates Ave Floor 2 Brooklyn, NY 11238 Victoria LaFever 
18561-001 MA 3-22-3F Kathleen  Shew 750 State Highway 206 Bainbridge, NY 13733 Chester N. Shew 
18562-001 HA 4-37-7 Daniel Libov 304 Stoddard Hollow Rd. Delancey, NY 13752 Eric Dohner 
18555-001 TO 3-36-19A Mary Branco 220 Millington Rd. Cortlandt Manor, NY 10567 Joseph Malikkal 
18560-001 DA 1-18-6 Jackie  Foley  83 Park Terrace W., Apt. 

2B 
New York, NY 10034 Donald Brown 

18548-001 DE 4-16-1B Shaye Troha 1545 Peakes Brook Rd. Delhi, NY 13753 Peter Lui 
18553-001 DE 4-28-20B Emanuele P. Vitale 386 Tanglewood Ln. Delhi, NY 13753 George Zografakis 
18551-001 HA 4-46-3 Ethan Erlich P.O. Box 250572 New York, NY 10025 Robert R. Lindner 
18550-001 BO 5-2-29A Joseph D. Honan 74 Willow Ave. Huntington, NY 11743 Carmine Faro 
18541-001 HA 4-24-40A Frances Branca 118 Ridge Rd.  Hamden, NY 13782 Gabrielle Pierce 
18544-001 AN 5-41-8A Kevin M. & 

Rachel M. 
Collins 563 Coss Rd. Andes, NY 13731 Rodney Weaver 

18545-001 MA 3-25-8C Frank Saccomanno 68 Myrna Ln. Staten Island, NY 10312 Mitch P. Losak 
18546-001 FR 3-28-4A Sarah Todes 1759 Russell Rd. Walton, NY 13856 Michael Bucci  
18569-001 HA 4-24-4 Wilton Stewart 3434 Launt Hollow Rd. Hamden, NY 13782 Maya Menendez 

 

7



 

5 N Depot St., , P.O. Box 471, Delhi, NY 13753 
Telephone: (607) 746-2341    Fax: (607) 746-7548    www.dce.coop 

 

RESOLUTION 

 

March 23, 2021 

 

 

BE IT RESOLVED, THAT WE, The Board of Directors of the Delaware County Electric 

Cooperative, Inc., 5 N. Depot St., , Delhi, NY 13753, do hereby authorize the transfer of  

$193.34 representing uncollectible accounts for utility customers per the following 

listing, to accumulated provision for uncollectible accounts. 

 

ACCOUNT     SER. ADD.     CUSTOMER           SEASONAL      RESIDENTIAL    

10285001       HF 2-14-19      Joan Moser    $         193.34 $              

           _____________ _____________  

                       $         193.34   $                 

 

 

March 23, 2021 

 

 

                 ___________________________________  

                        EDWARD G. PICK, JR., SECRETARY 

8



 

5 N Depot St., , P.O. Box 471, Delhi, NY 13753 
Telephone: (607) 746-2341    Fax: (607) 746-7548    www.dce.coop 

 

March 23, 2021 
 

 

BAD DEBT COLLECTION 

 

 

* PLEASE NOTE: The amounts below were recovered through capital credit retirements,  

                                 Southern Tier Credit Center & DCEC through February 2021.  

 

 

Original 
Amount 

Turned Over 
For 

Collections 

Name 
**Amount 
Collected 
CC to UA 

Amount 
Collected 
from So. 

Tier  

Amount 
Collected 

from DCEC 

Commission 
Paid this 
Month * 

Balance 
Due 

$     378.00 Swati  Singh $       $  203.57 $       $     61.07 $    - 0 - 

 
* Commission is 30% of the total amount collected last month. 50% if legal   

  services are required. If payment is made directly to us, the commission  

  will be the following month. 

 

** Under $30.00 does not get reported to Southern Tier Credit Center. 

 

*** Billing department did a small balance write off for the balance due amount.  
 

**** Capital credits are applied on a discounted basis towards outstanding debt  

     per the Capital Credits Applied to Bad Debt Policy. 

 

9



2021 Director Compensation Report Report Date: 18-Mar-2021

 

Director Officer CCD Per Diem Pers Mileage* Comp YTD** Balance Due (YTD)

1 Burnett No Yes 350$         17 9.52$       1,150.00$     1,178.56$               
2 Menke Yes Yes 375$         15 8.40$       1,225.00$     1,250.20$               

3 Oles Yes Yes 375$         14 7.84$       1,975.00$     1,998.52$               
4 Pick Yes Yes 375$         44 24.64$     850.00$        899.28$                  
5 J. Russell No Yes 375$         44 24.64$     1,975.00$     2,048.92$               
6 K. Tosi No No 300$         20 11.20$     1,800.00$     1,822.40$               
7 Wehmeyer No Yes 350$         52 29.12$     2,200.00$     2,287.36$               

TOTAL: 10,025.00$   10,306.68$             

NOTES: 1) Board policy identifies $300 per diem compensation + $25 for officers + $50 for CCD directors.
* 2) Mileage to/from regular meetings @ IRS per mile rates of………………….……..… $0.560

** 3) Compensation YTD reflects total taxable amount earned (excludes reimburseable expenses such as mileage)
4) Compensation for co-op-related "Short Activities" @ $100 per meeting (per Jan2013 Board Resolution)

10



 

11



March 

DCEC Corporate Calendar Review 

 

Financial Audit - Report to Board Cannizzaro/CEO 

Form 990 Report Prep (Feb-Mar) Cannizzaro 

Financial (Form 7) Report / Submission by 3/31 (RUS, CFC, NYPA, Co-Bank) Cannizzaro/CEO 

Annual Meeting Kick-off Planning (incl consideration of Bylaw changes) CEO/VanZandt/Board 

Legislative Youth Tour Interviews/Selection CEO/Board 

Update Truck Maps - printed Sullivan 

Phase Balance Study completed Sullivan/DeAndrea 

NRECA Reliability Survey Sullivan/DeAndrea 

Dept of Energy EIA Survey Sullivan 

NYSRECA Legislative Conference (tbd) CEO/VanZandt 

Board decision/approval of proposed bylaw changes (for Annual Meeting)  Board 

Update System Dispatch Book for Dispatchers & Office Sullivan/DeAndrea 

Nominating (Director Search) Committee Meeting CEO/VanZandt 

Power Cost Risk Update to Board CEO 

  

April  

NYS ORPS Equalization & Assessment report (4/15) Cannizzaro/Sullivan 

Submission of Audited Financials to RUS - due 4/30 Cannizzaro 

Form 990 Report - Board Approval/Submission to IRS (due by 5/15) Cannizzaro 

DEC Pesticide Business/Agency Registration (April/May, tri-annual, next in 2022) Sullivan 

Finance Committee Meeting (Apr/Jul/Oct) Cannizzaro/CEO/Board 

Vegetation Management Update to Board CEO/Sullivan 

Shop Fence Walk-Thru and Repairs Sullivan/Fisher 

Schedule Bucket Truck Testing Ives/Sullivan 

Confined Spaces Gas Tester Calibration Sullivan 

 

12



Revision: 100216

General Ledger
Financial And Operating Report Electric Distribution

Page: 19:17:12 am02/26/2021

Delaware County Elec

Item Last Year This Year

----------------------------------Year - To - Date -------------------------------

Budget Current
------------- Period - To - Date -----------------

Budget

INCOME STATEMENT FOR DEC 2020

8,826,863.29 8,844,240.50 9,324,366.04 947,387.99 866,591.00 1. Operating Revenue and Patronage Capital
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2. Power Production Expense

1,940,973.53 2,007,535.33 2,671,925.12 226,025.88 247,060.05 3. Cost of Purchased Power
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4. Transmission Expense
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5. Regional Market Expense

1,375,772.38 1,378,807.81 1,437,729.99 103,607.54 122,551.71 6. Distribution Expense - Operation
1,764,369.04 1,632,924.09 1,525,707.20 96,539.53 108,138.11 7. Distribution Expense - Maintenance

253,591.29 279,435.95 315,813.46 28,294.38 26,107.23 8. Customer Accounts Expense
10,861.78 17,616.53 20,841.51 3,396.67 1,751.13 9. Customer Service and Informational Expense

0.00 187.96 2,651.44 187.96 226.8010. Sales Expense
1,471,616.90 1,563,764.15 1,301,141.20 150,247.02 112,771.3011. Administrative and General Expense
6,817,184.92 6,880,271.82 7,275,809.92 608,298.98 618,606.3312. Total Operation & Maintenance Expense (2 thru 11)

978,005.10 1,016,362.33 1,000,814.78 86,664.24 88,858.5713. Depreciation & Amortization Expense
4,000.00 4,068.60 4,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.0014. Tax Expense - Property & Gross Receipts

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0015. Tax Expense - Other
602,156.25 525,116.63 507,028.02 40,574.12 37,546.8416. Interest on Long-Term Debt

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0017. Interest Charged to Construction - Credit
311.55 462.43 14,550.00 146.72 3,587.5018. Interest Expense - Other
300.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0019. Other Deductions

8,401,957.82 8,426,281.81 8,802,202.72 736,684.06 749,599.2420. Total Cost of Electric Service (12 thru 19)

424,905.47 417,958.69 522,163.32 210,703.93 116,991.7621. Patronage Capital & Operating Margins (1 minus 20)
124,947.80 56,640.90 53,078.02 221.27 900.0022. Non Operating Margins - Interest

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0023. Allowance for Funds Used During Construction
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0024. Income (Loss) from Equity Investments

36,740.28 9,988.50 12,400.04 -20,024.33 -633.3325. Non Operating Margins - Other
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0026. Generation and Transmission Capital Credits

30,784.55 28,534.06 41,800.00 3,565.60 7,000.0027. Other Capital Credits and Patronage Dividends
0.00 126,682.11 0.00 0.00 0.0028. Extraordinary Items

617,378.10 639,804.26 629,441.38 194,466.47 124,258.4329. Patronage Capital or Margins (21 thru 28)

425,105.47 419,411.29 522,163.32 211,563.93 116,991.76Operating - Margin
192,272.63 220,392.97 107,278.06 -17,097.46 7,266.67Non Operating - Margin

1.71 1.80Times Interest Earned Ratio - Operating
2.03 2.22Times Interest Earned Ratio - Net
1.97 2.16Times Interest Earned Ratio - Modified

34020 /pro/rpttemplate/acct/2.49.1/gl/GL_STANDARD_FINANCIAL.xml.rpt mtc

13



General Ledger
Financial And Operating Report Electric Distribution

Page: 19:17:14 am02/26/2021

Revision: 106506Delaware County Elec

This YearLast Year Variance

BALANCE SHEET FOR DEC 2020

ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS
     1. Total Utility Plant in Service 34,915,369.82 1,094,933.8433,820,435.98
     2. Construction Work in Progress 2,686,053.50 2,298,931.56387,121.94
     3. Total Utility Plant (1 + 2) 37,601,423.32 3,393,865.4034,207,557.92
     4. Accum. Provision for Depreciation and Amort. 12,643,752.13 375,689.7512,268,062.38
     5. Net Utility Plant (3 - 4) 24,957,671.19 3,018,175.6521,939,495.54
     6. Non-Utility Property (Net) 0.00 -610,239.63610,239.63
     7. Invest. in Subsidiary Companies 0.00 0.000.00
     8. Invest. in Assoc. Org. - Patronage Capital 336,988.78 9,173.60327,815.18
     9. Invest. in Assoc. Org. - Other - General Funds 650,104.71 450,104.71200,000.00
    10. Invest. in Assoc. Org. - Other - Nongeneral Funds 237,445.18 -8,696.47246,141.65
    11. Invest. in Economic Development Projects 0.00 0.000.00
    12. Other Investments 4,025.71 -752.384,778.09
    13. Special Funds 68,000.00 34,000.0034,000.00
    14. Total Other Property & Investments (6 thru 13) 1,296,564.38 -126,410.171,422,974.55
    15. Cash - General Funds 808,519.80 622,398.93186,120.87
    16. Cash - Construction Funds - Trustee 203,205.00 193,105.0010,100.00
    17. Special Deposits 0.00 0.000.00
    18. Temporary Investments 0.00 0.000.00
    19. Notes Receivable (Net) 0.00 0.000.00
    20. Accounts Receivable - Sales of Energy (Net) 614,953.49 -9,847.73624,801.22
    21. Accounts Receivable - Other (Net) 371,335.78 -83,952.28455,288.06
    22. Renewable Energy Credits 0.00 0.000.00
    23. Material and Supplies - Electric & Other 903,579.40 135,308.86768,270.54
    24. Prepayments 203,622.63 -7,600.90211,223.53
    25. Other Current and Accrued Assets 429,283.68 97,093.45332,190.23
    26. Total Current and Accrued Assets (15 thru 25) 3,534,499.78 946,505.332,587,994.45
    27. Regulatory Assets 902,339.99 -207,134.011,109,474.00
    28. Other Deferred Debits 526,777.52 -133,349.56660,127.08
    29. Total Assets and Other Debits (5 + 14 + 26 thru 28) 31,217,852.86 3,497,787.2427,720,065.62

34020 /pro/rpttemplate/acct/2.49.1/gl/GL_STANDARD_FINANCIAL_BAL_SHEET.xml.rpt mtc

14



General Ledger
Financial And Operating Report Electric Distribution

Page: 29:17:14 am02/26/2021

Revision: 106506Delaware County Elec

This YearLast Year Variance

BALANCE SHEET FOR DEC 2020

LIABILITIES AND OTHER CREDITS
    30. Memberships 60,380.00 1,480.0058,900.00
    31. Patronage Capital 8,600,746.50 88,763.748,511,982.76
    32. Operating Margins - Prior Years 0.00 0.000.00
    33. Operating Margins - Current Year 419,411.29 -5,694.18425,105.47
    34. Non-Operating Margins 220,392.97 28,120.34192,272.63
    35. Other Margins and Equities 1,300,857.82 145,054.771,155,803.05
    36. Total Margins & Equities (30 thru 35) 10,601,788.58 257,724.6710,344,063.91
    37. Long-Term Debt - RUS (Net) 0.00 0.000.00
    38. Long-Term Debt - FFB - RUS Guaranteed 12,568,168.84 1,077,225.2311,490,943.61
    39. Long-Term Debt - Other - RUS Guaranteed 0.00 0.000.00
    40. Long-Term Debt - Other (Net) 2,785,586.42 -509,254.253,294,840.67
    41. Long-Term Debt - RUS Econ. Devel. (Net) 0.00 0.000.00
    42. Payments - Unapplied 0.00 2,027,274.83-2,027,274.83
    43. Total Long-Term Debt (37 thru 41 - 42) 15,353,755.26 2,595,245.8112,758,509.45
    44. Obligations Under Capital Leases - Noncurrent 0.00 0.000.00
    45. Accumulated Operating Provisions 0.00 0.000.00
    46. Total Other Noncurrent Liabilities (44 + 45) 0.00 0.000.00
    47. Notes Payable 464,218.14 464,218.140.00
    48. Accounts Payable 293,728.20 74,527.36219,200.84
    49. Consumers Deposits 180,970.63 -12,321.05193,291.68
    50. Current Maturities Long-Term Debt 0.00 0.000.00
    51. Current Maturities Long-Term Debt - Econ. Devel. 0.00 0.000.00
    52. Current Maturities Capital Leases 0.00 0.000.00
    53. Other Current and Accrued Liabilities 430,852.01 35,926.56394,925.45
    54. Total Current & Accrued Liabilities (47 thru 53) 1,369,768.98 562,351.01807,417.97
    55. Regulatory Liabilities 0.00 0.000.00
    56. Other Deferred Credits 3,892,540.04 82,465.753,810,074.29
    57. Total Liab. & Other Credits (36+43+46+54 thru 56) 31,217,852.86 3,497,787.2427,720,065.62

2.583.21Current Assets To Current Liabilities  to 1  to 1
37.32 33.96  % %Margins and Equities To Total Assets

40.8337.30  %Long-Term Debt To Total Utility Plant  %

34020 /pro/rpttemplate/acct/2.49.1/gl/GL_STANDARD_FINANCIAL_BAL_SHEET.xml.rpt mtc

15



16



17



18



19



20



21



DCEC BOARD MEETING GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT February 19, 2021 – March 17, 2021 

  

ENGINEERING & OPERATIONS  

Notable Outages & Occurrences: The Cooperative experienced a rather long outage event in Andes off the Delhi 

substation. Severe wind and snow posed extremely dangerous conditions so much so that the crews and Ryan 

opted to have the crews return home and then report to work at daylight which allowed for improved visibility. 

This is only the 2
nd

 time in my 32 years here at the Cooperative that I can remember that the crews were unable to 

continue efforts to restore power due to dangerous weather conditions. There have been other times when they 

came in for rest after having worked for 16 + hours straight but it is not often that they encounter such extreme 

conditions that they have to abandon efforts to ensure their safety. I give them a tremendous amount of credit for 

working in conditions that they do for extended lengths of time. 

Per Ryan: “Outage at PT R Delhi Sub was 16 hours and had 248 members off contributing 238323 member 

minutes and contributed to the majority of the 47.43 SAIDI minutes on 3/1/21. Also off during the wind was 

Amphenol Aerospace due to trees taking down the NYSEG line and taking the plant off line for 7 hours and 37 

minutes.”  

Disconnections: No services were disconnected for non-payment this month. The moratorium on disconnects of 

electric service for non-payment is currently scheduled to expire on March 31
st
 although is appears that it may be 

extended. Bruce Geiger is keeping us abreast of this issue. Ryan Sullivan and Rosemary Alwine also had a recent 

conversation with NYPA and they are working with NYPA to assure compliance with future DNPs. 

Pole Inspections / Line Inspections / Stray Voltage Testing: Stray voltage testing is on hold at this time due to 

snow. Pole and Line Inspections will resume as weather allows.   

FINANCE & ACOUNTING & HUMAN RESOURCES:  

Small Business Administration (SBA) Payroll Protection Program (PPP) Loan Forgiveness Application: We have 

not had any further communication from Dee Hillis from The Delaware National Bank since previously reported 

which was on February 18, 2021.  

2020 Audit: Stanley “Mike” Roseberry from the auditing firm of Fiore Fedeli Snyder Carothers, LLP has been 

invited, and has confirmed, that he will be attending the Finance Committee Meeting being held Tuesday, April 

27
th
 at 2:00 p.m. At this time he will be presenting the official results and corresponding documents related to the 

audit of the 2020 financials. That same day Mike will be conducting the required NRECA audit as well. This audit 

looks at compliance with the retirement plans offered to employees. Results of that audit should be available for 

the May board meeting. 

 

Operations Staffing Update: Per previous discussions with Randy Tweedie and Mike Pietrantoni, I fully support 

and recommend that the staffing levels go back to 5 on the Right-of-Way crew and the line crew go back to 10. 

CEO Transition: I am pleased to hear that a permanent CEO/General Manager has been found and all indications 

are that he is to start on April 2
nd

. I am confident that Mark Cannizzaro, Ryan Sullivan and Paul De Andrea can 

assist in bringing him up to speed on matters that are imperative to the Cooperative. Alicia VanZandt can also 

assist with duties as it relates to member and board matters. I strongly feel that the staff is on the right path and 

being respectful regarding the progress being made concerning the chain of command as it relates to employee, 

board, members and all Cooperative matters and this should transition easily with the new CEO/General Manager. 

 

Member-Funded Employee Celebration: The generous donation made by a member to the employees for a 

luncheon, currently has a balance of $540.00. I would like to recommend that these funds be used for a “meet and 

greet” breakfast on a day close to the start of the new CEO’s employment. Bear in mind that the operations staff 

have started their 10 day schedule so Tuesday, April 6
th
 would be the best day for this to happen. That is also the 

day that the Operations employees have their monthly safety meeting so they would already be scheduled to be 

22



here in the morning. It would be nice if the entire board could also participate and mingle with the employees 

while enjoying breakfast. This would create the opportunity for the new CEO, with the support of the board, to 

address the employees and provide any pertinent information that he sees fit while allowing the employees to also 

get to know him. This can all be done in the high bay area so that we are COVID safe. The directors’ breakfasts 

would be paid for by the Cooperative and not deducted from the donation meant for the employees. 

Covid-19 Update: To date, the Cooperative has had 5 staff members test positive for the Coronavirus. All 

employees have recovered and returned to work after meeting CDC and county DOH (Department of Health) 

guidelines for returning to work safely. I distributed an updated COVID-19 procedure document to all employees 

on March 17
th
. I have included a copy of this document for your review. The most significant change is on pages 

2-4 of the document. It outlines the timeline for when an employee gets paid by the Cooperative, when they can 

apply for additional paid days through the NYS DBL/PFL (New York State Disability/Paid Family Leave) and 

when they would be required to use their PTO for absences related to COVID-19 sickness. 

 

Mike Pietrantoni contacted the Delaware County Public Health Department regarding availability of the 

COVID-19 vaccine due to questions raised in the recent Operations Safety Meeting. The county deemed us 

eligible for the vaccine as essential workers. We were provided a link to sign up if we wanted to receive a vaccine 

that was to be administered at a clinic being held the very next day. Mark, Ryan, Rosemary and I received our first 

dose on Thursday March 11
th
 and are slated to receive the 2

nd
 dose on or about April 8

th
 or 9

th
. Employees that 

have had COVID-19 were told that it was too early after their infection to be vaccinated. All other employees did 

not opt to receive the vaccine. 

 

Mark Cannizzaro: Mark and his wife celebrated the birth of their new son on February 26
th
. Please congratulate 

Mark on the arrival of Dominic James.  

 

POWER SUPPLY / PROJECT INITIATIVES:  

Headquarters Project: Per Ryan: “Paving of the rear lots has been scheduled for the week of April 5
th
 2021, 

Lancaster has projected to return and complete final topcoat and address any additional concerns. Ryan will be 

walking the rear lot to look for and mark problem areas for them to address. Atlas fence will be on site on March 

22
nd

 to construct the fence around the retention basin” 

 

NYAPP: Annual Informational Filing of NYPA Formula Transmission Rate: I received an email from Tom 

Rudebusch on March 16
th
 regarding a found error calculating the 2020 Net Adjusted Transmission Revenue 

Requirement (ATRR). I will admit that this is something that I am totally unfamiliar with and as such I have asked 

Paul De Andrea to report on this. His report is included in your board packet. This error would result in a 

reduction and not any additional costs to the Cooperative. Please see Paul’s report for further clarification. 

 
LEGAL, GOVERNANCE & LEGISLATIVE/INDUSTRY AFFAIRS:  

COVID-19 Stimulus Relief Package: The recent passing of the COVID-19 stimulus package included an 

additional 4.5 billion for the Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program commonly referred to as HEAP. 

 
NRECA Government Relations: Paul Gutierrez, Senior Legislative Director from NRECA, helped to facilitate a 

meeting with Congressman Andrew Garbarino and his legislative assistant, Emily Burdick, on March 3, 2021 with 

managers and others from the NYS Cooperatives. He has familiarity with New York and the RECS as he worked 

with Assemblyman Phil Palmesano on the NYS Energy Commission. He only had a few minutes to spend with us 

as he had to vote on the floor of US congress but his assistant Emily was quite attentive and seemed genuinely 

interested in the work and business of the RECs. The managers talked about issues such as Broadband, COVID 

and staffing. Paul Gutierrez showed a slide on power generation types around the US and I informed Emily that 

although our fellow RECs received a large amount of their power from coal generation, we here in NY, received 

ours from hydro. I also informed Emily that we could potentially see a 5
th
 REC in New York based on the recent 

23



acquisition of NY assets by Tri-County in PA. 

NYSRECA Government Relations Committee: NYSRECA met via teleconference on Friday, March 5, 2021.  

The call focuses primarily on government relations, with an emphasis on proposed bills in the Senate and 

Assembly. 

1. Bruce Geiger continues to work with NYAPP on the moratorium placed on utilities by executive order 

due to the pandemic. Bruce is currently gathering data from NYAPP systems in an effort to secure some 

COVID relief funding to help the utilities pay ever growing arrears due to the moratorium. 

2. Bruce Geiger commented that due to the many issues surrounding Governor Cuomo at this current time 

many of the legislative processes are seeing interruptions including the budget process. Bruce also shared 

that budget bills being released include items such as the Senate passing the legislation to extend the 

utility shut-off moratorium. 

3. RESMA Report: It was reported that at the recent meeting there was a lot of attention on nuclear power 

and its potential rise in use nationally. Also, there was a lot of talk on pole attachments and easements. 

 

NYAPP:  

1. Susan Stohr has reported that with the passing of the COVID stimulus package, state and local aid will 

receive $350 billion. 60% is slated for the state with the other 40% going to localities.  

2. There has not been any news on the recent letter sent to Governor Cuomo requesting that utility workers 

be stated as essential workers as to be eligible for the COVID-19 vaccine. 

 

MEMBER SERVICES & PUBLIC RELATIONS:  

Open House: The Open House for the new headquarters building will have to be put on hold until COVID-19 

restrictions are lifted and we can be assured of a safe celebration. 

 

Annual Family Fun Day: The annual Family Fun Day is in the preliminary planning stages, however, the event 

will be subject to the current pandemic situation and will have to be evaluated as to if it will be safe to hold.  

 

2021 Annual Meeting: The same scenario as the Annual Family Fun Day. 

 
SAFETY REPORT:  

Injury Report: 2 minor injuries were reported to the HR department this month.  

Safety Committee Activity: No activity to report.  

24



March 17, 2021 

Summary of Anticipated Adjustment to NYPA’S NTAC (NYPA Transmission Access Charge) Filing 

NYAPP has advised DCEC that NYPA has discovered an accounting error in its Net Adjusted Transmission 

Revenue Requirement (“ATRR”) which is the annual revenue requirement determination for operating 

its transmission system.  This error resulted in NYPA’s collecting excess revenue through their NTAC 

schedule.  This discovered error will cause NYPA to lower the charges of the NTAC schedule following its 

filing of the new NTAC schedule on July 1, 2021. 

On July 1st of each year, NYPA files its NTAC schedule for the subsequent 12 months with the FERC.  It is 

posted on the NYISO website and it is used to determine a portion of the NYISO charges that are 

included in the monthly invoice from NYPA for DCEC’s power and energy purchases.  Additionally, DCEC 

uses the NTAC schedule in determining a portion of the power cost adjustment calculation on a monthly 

basis. 

Apparently, this error will result in a reduction of the NTAC schedule, to be filed July 1, 2021, by 

between $2.0 million and $6.0 million.  NYAPP indicated that it is not able to determine an exact 

correction since the expected treatment of the error by NYPA has not yet been revealed. 

With the 2020 ATRR having been equal to approximately $279 million, annually, an adjustment ranging 

from $2.0 million to $6.0 million will result in a reduction in the NTAC schedule ranging from 0.72% to 

2.2% effective with the July 1, 2021 filing. 

25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



 
Employee Plan in Response to COVID-19 Virus 

 
Last updated 03/17/2021 

 
Purpose of the Employee Plans 

These plans are intended to minimize transmission of the COVID-19 virus between employees, 
so that employees and those they come into contact with outside the workplace are safer.  The 
plans have been developed based on Governor Cuomo’s executive orders and subsequent NYS 
laws.  The Cooperative is obligated to uphold any and all NYS and Federal laws, and also 
follows current CDC guidelines. As more is learned about the virus, these guidelines are subject 
to change. 
 
This plan allows us to continue to serve the most critical needs of members, including answering 
the phone and responding to outages.  Also, critical office functions like payroll processing will 
be maintained under this plan. 
 
This plan also outlines procedures in the event that employees have extended time away from the 
office due to a COVID related illness. 
 

 
Furlough 

There is no plan to utilize employee furlough based on the current region’s ranking put forth by 
the Governor’s office. If there is a new executive order or state of emergency, then employee 
furlough will be reconsidered. Individual Furlough (Quarantine), is considered in the event that 
an employee may have been exposed to the virus. In such cases, employees may be entitled to 
paid leave. 
 

 
Maintaining Social Distance 

 Social distancing is absolutely required to limit possible exposure and subsequent 
contamination, in the event another employee may be a-symptomatic and be positive for the 
virus. 
 

 
Required Precautions 

While at work, the following precautions shall be taken by all employees:  
1) Attempt to maintain a distance of 6 feet between employees
2) If practical, utilize your badge rather than your finger/thumb print to punch in and out 

with the time clock. 

 whenever practical. 

3) Whenever practical, clean and disinfect shared surfaces by utilizing disinfect wipes and 
cleaners provided by the Cooperative. Shared surfaces include time clocks, bathroom 
fixtures, door handles, steering wheels of shared vehicles, gas pumps, etc. 

4) Wash hands thoroughly as often as possible and after contact with surfaces that may not 
be sanitized. Avoid touching your face with your hands. 

43



5) Utilize hand sanitizer when unable to wash hands after touching surfaces that may not be 
disinfected. The Cooperative has provided sanitizers in all areas of the office, and 
disposable sanitizing wipes and liquid are available for all trucks and offices. 

6) When vehicles are shared, employees within the shared vehicle must wear face coverings. 
Sanitize all trucks before and after using. 

 

 
Face Masks 

We are required to wear facemasks in any situation where we may not be able to maintain social 
distancing with members of the public or with each other as employees.  For this reason, the 
Cooperative has provided all employees and guests with disposable face masks.  FR face masks 
have been supplied to those who work in and near the energized space.  Please let us know if you 
are in need of FR masks or any other PPE.  All employees must deny access to Cooperative 
property to anyone that refuses to wear a mask, and will be denied from the Cooperative or use 
of its property if they themselves do not wear a mask. 
 

 
Suspected COVID-19 Exposure Procedure 

All employees are required to notify their immediate supervisor and/or CEO/GM if they suspect 
or are notified that there was a possible exposure to the virus. In some cases, the possible 
exposure to the virus may be remote, but it still needs to be reported as soon as you have 
knowledge of the possible exposure.  
 
      Possible Outcomes per CDC Guidelines and NYS Department of Health (DOH) at this time: 
 

1) Quarantine can end after Day 10 without testing if no symptoms have been reported 
during daily monitoring, as long as the following criteria are met: 

•  Individuals must continue daily symptom monitoring through Day 14;  
• Individuals must be counseled to continue strict adherence to all recommended 

non-pharmaceutical interventions, including hand hygiene and the use of face 
coverings, through Day 14.  

• Individuals must be advised that if any symptoms develop, they should 
immediately self-isolate and contact the local public health authority or their 
healthcare provider to report this change in clinical status and determine if they 
should seek testing. 

 

 
COVID-19 Infection Procedure 

All employees are required to notify their immediate supervisor and/or CEO/GM if they exhibit 
symptoms of having contracted the COVID-19 virus after a known exposure.  
 
       Possible Outcomes per CDC Guidelines and NYS Department of Health (DOH) at this time: 
 

44



1) If an employee has symptoms and has received a positive test result, they can return 
to work after the following conditions are met: 

a) 10 days since symptoms first appeared and 
b) 24 hours with no fever without the use of fever-reducing medications and 
c) Other symptoms of COVID-19 are improving* 

*Loss of taste and smell may persist for weeks or months after recovery and need not delay 
the end of isolation 
 

2) If an employee tested positive but has no symptoms, they can return to work after 10 
days of having received the positive result if they are still not exhibiting symptoms. 

 
3) If an employee is subject to an Order of Quarantine by a state agency or health 

department, or has a positive COVID-19 test, the Cooperative will pay the employee 
for up to 10 days of leave, consisting of the ten 10 days beginning on the date of the 
start of the Order of Quarantine or the date of the positive test.  

 
4) If an employee has met the 10 day requirement and/or has reached the end of a 

county or state mandated quarantine, but still cannot report to work due to illness, 
the employee will be required to use sick time or other appropriate forms of PTO for 
continued leave. If the sick time is longer than 3 days, the employee will be required 
to obtain and submit a directive from a medical professional verifying the need for 
leave and setting forth a return to work date. The Cooperative may also require that a 
medical professional and/or the employee submit documentation that deems the 
employee safe and able to return to work.  

 
In addition, an employee who has been out of work pursuant to an order of quarantine or 
isolation and who tests positive a second time for COVID-19, must submit verification of 
the positive test result to their immediate supervisor. In such cases, the Cooperative the 
employee may receive an additional 5 days of paid leave, and  would also be eligible for 5 
days of PFL / DBL. Employees wishing to apply for PFL/DBL should contact Human 
Resources or Guardian insurance as soon as possible to receive appropriate forms.  This 
same procedure and leave would apply in the event that the same individual tests positive 
for COVID-19 a third time.  
 
The employee is not entitled to leave more than three times, and any subsequent leave must 
comply with the Cooperative’s existing leave policies.. Employees can also apply for NYS 
DBL/PFLA through our insurance carrier, Guardian, for an additional 5 days paid by the 
insurance carrier per positive test. 
 
For example:  
Exposure or Positive Test Employer paid up to10 days  
2nd Positive Test Employer paid up to 5 days PFL/DBL paid  up to5 days 
3rd Positive Test Employer paid up to 5 days PFL/DBL paid up to 5 days 
 

45



5) If an employee does not have or exhausts all sick time, they may utilize the sick leave 
donation program outlined in the union contract, if eligible. 

 
6) If the employee is still unable to return to work after having exhausted all PTO and sick 

time, the employee will be transitioned to short term disability for a maximum of 26 
weeks. If the employee cannot return to work after 26 weeks being on short term 
disability and is still unable to return to work, the employee will be transitioned to long 
term disability. 
 

7) Employees that are in their probationary period and therefore, do not have any PTO, are 
eligible to apply for NYS statutory short term disability but not the enhanced short term 
disability benefits provided by the Cooperative. Any days beyond the NYS statutory 
short term disability, will be taken as unpaid leave. 

 
Please note: All “days” refer to calendar days and not workdays. Also, all Department of Health 
mandated quarantine days will be paid by the employer and not subject to employee’s PTO.  
Employees that need to care for a family member are eligible to apply for Family Care through 
Paid Family Leave, and should see Human Resources or Guardian Insurance for the appropriate 
forms. 
 
The Cooperative is considered to employ essential employees, and as such, reserves the right to 
evaluate and consult with each individual employee on a case by case basis to arrive at a mutual 
course of action for each scenario. 
 

 
Collective Bargaining Agreements 

It is not the intention of the Cooperative’s management to violate any collective bargaining 
agreement in implementing these emergency measures.  If an issue arises with respect to 
contractual terms or conditions of employment, management is committed to sitting down with 
union representatives as soon as practical to work in good faith to address any issues. 
 
This plan is being sent to IBEW Local 10 for their informational purposes.  Management will be 
open to discuss any issues that may be identified by the Union. In the meantime, the plan will be 
implemented out of concern for our employees and members of the public. 
 
 

46



 
 

  
POLICY 

 
SUBJECT: Directors Qualifications and Responsibilities 
 
 
POLICY: It shall be the policy of the Cooperative to elect and retain directors who 

meet and maintain certain minimum qualifications.  As outlined in the 
Cooperative’s Bylaws and in this policy, a director shall: 

 
  
 

1. Be a bona fide resident  in the areas serviced by the Cooperative; 
and  
 

2. Not be employed by, or financially interested in, a competing 
enterprise of a business primarily engaged in selling electric energy 
or plumbing appliances, fixtures or supplies to the members of the 
Cooperative; and 

 
3. Not be a close relative of another director or active employee of the 

Cooperative ( defined as being within the third degree of 
consanguinity or affinity); and 

 
4. Not have been a former employee of the Cooperative within thirty 

sixtwenty-four (3624) months prior to being elected or appointed to 
serve on the Board, and 

 
5. Not have been convicted of a felony crime, and 

 
6. Not have owed to the Cooperative an amount outstanding more than 

ninety (90) days in arrears. 
 
  
 Further, it shall be the responsibility of directors to: 
 

1. Comply with applicable requirements of law, the Cooperative 
Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws, the Cooperative’s duly 
adopted policies and the Cooperative’s duly made decisions; 
 

2. Assume a fiduciary duty to act, in good faith, in the best interests of 
the Cooperative and its members; 

 

47



 
3. Be loyal to the Cooperative and not have any conflicting 

commercial or personal interests; 
 

4. Be possessed of the minimum knowledge and skills necessary to 
govern the affairs of the Cooperative and to stay current in industry 
developments and issues through ongoing education and 
engagement, which shall include completing the Certified 
Credentialed Director (CCD) training offered by the National Rural 
Electric Cooperative Association (NRECA) by the end of the 
second term of service as director; 

 
5. Be willing to devote such time and effort to the duties of a director 

as may be necessary to govern the Cooperative’s affairs; 
 

6. Be able to represent the entire membership on an impartial basis; 
 

7. Be willing and able to attend regularly scheduled and special 
meetings of the Board; 

 
8. Not use or cause to be used, the position as director to further any 

personal political or business ambition or to advance special 
interests of an individual member; 

 
9. To put forth effort to understand the Cooperative’s problems and to 

provide the judgment needed to reach decisions in constantly 
changing circumstances; 

 
10. To support all official decisions and actions made or taken by a 

majority of the Board; 
 

11. To conscientiously study the information contained in reports 
submitted or provided to the Board; 

 
12. To keep informed as to the ideals, objectives and strategic plans of 

the Cooperative and to further study and analyze the policies, plans 
and problems which result from efforts to achieve such ideals and 
objectives; 

 
13. To keep informed of, alert to, and aware of the attitudes of the 

members, the employees, and general public toward the 
Cooperative’s objectives and policies; 

 
14. To inform the membership and all other interested parties about the 

Cooperative’s ideals, objectives, programs and services; 
 

48



 
 

15. To conduct oneself in the eyes of the general public in such a 
manner as will reflect positively on the Cooperative and personify 
the position of trust held by the director, including refraining from 
such conduct which would subject the director to indictment for a 
felony or crime of moral turpitude or from conduct representing 
disregard of the standard of behavior which the members can 
rightfully expect from a director; and 

 
16. Be prepared to serve at a minimum a term of three (3) years except 

in situations where appointments are made to complete unexpired 
terms of service. 

 
 
PROCEDURE: This policy shall be implemented as follows: 
 

1. It shall be disseminated and explained to any potential Cooperative 
Board member.  The Nominating Committee appointed by the 
Board shall screen all persons considered for nomination as 
directors to ensure that they are qualified in accordance with this 
policy.  In cases of established directors, the Chief Executive 
Officer and the Cooperative’s attorney shall advise the Board 
President of circumstances where seated directors are not in 
compliance with this policy.  The Board President shall then bring 
this information to the attention of the Board at a Board meeting, or 
if there is insufficient time to act at a Board meeting, to the attention 
of a committee appointed by the Board authorized to act on its 
behalf. 

 
2. The Board, in filling a vacancy occurring on the Board , shall ensure 

that a proposed director is qualified to be appointed and is apprised 
of this policy before appointment. 

 
3. All persons nominated, either by the Nominating Committee or by 

petition, or who are being considered for appointment as director by 
the Board shall, prior to election or appointment, read this policy 
and execute the Affirmation Form attached hereto confirming that 
they comply with all director eligibility requirements and other 
terms of this policy. 

 
 
RESPONSIBILITY: The Board is responsible for the enforcement of this policy in 

accordance with Cooperative bylaws.  If any member challenges the 
qualifications of any director by filing charges in the manner set forth 
in the bylaws, the Board shall notify the director in writing of the 

49



 
charges at least five days prior to the next regular or special meeting of 
the members, and shall present the matter to the membership at such 
meeting for consideration and vote. The director thus charged shall 
have the opportunity prior to vote to be heard in person or by counsel 
and to present evidence in respect to the charges, and the person or 
persons bringing the charges against the director shall have the same 
opportunity. If by vote of the membership the director is removed from 
office, the vacancy created by such removal may be filled by vote of 
the members at such meeting without compliance with the bylaw 
provisions with respect to nominations. 

  
 
 
 
 
 

DELAWARE COUNTY ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC. 
Approved by Board of Directors  Mar 1, 1961 
Reviewed by Board of Directors Jun 16, 1971 
Reviewed by Board of Directors Nov 27, 1984 
Reviewed by Board of Directors Jan 24, 1989 
Reviewed by Board of Directors Feb 28, 1995 
Revised by Board of Directors May 4, 2005 
Revised by Board of Directors May 26, 2008 
Revised by Board of Directors May 31, 2012 
Revised by Board of Directors              Sept 24, 2013 
Revised by Board of Directors Oct 27, 2015 
Reviewed by Board of Directors Sep 25, 2017 
Reviewed by Board of Directors March 23, 2021 

50



2. Reading of the notice of the meeting and proof of the due publication or mailing 

thereof, or the waiver or waivers of notice of the meeting, as the case may be. 

3. Reading of unapproved minutes of previous meetings of the members, or the waiver 

or waivers of notice of reading, as the case may be, and the taking of necessary 

action thereof. 

4. Presentation and consideration of reports of officers, directors and committees. 

5. Election of directors. 

6. Unfinished business. 

7. New business. 

8. Adjournment. 

ARTICLE IV 

Directors 

Section 1.  General Powers.  The business and affairs of the Cooperative shall be managed 

by a board of seven directors selected from the Northern, Central and Southern Regions of the 

Cooperative (as hereinafter described), which shall exercise all of the powers of the Cooperative 

except such as are by law, the articles of incorporation or these bylaws conferred upon or reserved 

to the members. 

Section 2.  Qualification, Election and Tenure.  Two directors represent the Northern 

Region, three directors represent the Central Region and two directors represent the Southern 

Region. 

At each annual meeting, a number of directors, equal to the number of directors whose 

terms expire at the time of such meeting, shall be elected to hold office for a 3-year term. 

In order to achieve a balanced rotation of Central Region directors with one Central Region 

director elected each year, a one-time exception to the 3-year director term shall take place for 

directors elected at the 2019 Annual Meeting of the Members, at which two Central Region 

directors shall be elected in accordance with this Article.  The Central Region director candidate 

receiving the most votes at the 2019 Annual Meeting of the Members shall serve a term of 3 years.  

The Central Region director candidate receiving the second most votes at the 2019 Annual Meeting 

of the Members shall serve a term of 2 years. 

Directors shall be elected by a plurality vote of members. No person shall be eligible to 

become or remain a director, or to hold any position of trust in the Cooperative, who: 

(a) is not a member; or 

51



(b) is in any way employed by, or was a former employee of within thirty-six (36) 

months, or materially financially interested in, a competing enterprise of a business 

primarily engaged in selling electric energy to the members of the Cooperative; or 

(c) is a close relative of another director or active employee of the Cooperative (as 

defined as being within the third degree of consanguinity or affinity); or 

(d) was a former employee of the Cooperative within thirty-six (36) months prior to 

the vote; or 

(e) has been convicted of a felony crime; or 

(f) who currently has amounts owed to the Cooperative for more than 90 days in 

arrears; or 

(g) is not a natural person (excludes entities such as firms, associations, corporations, 

business trusts, estates, partnerships, federal agencies, state or political subdivisions 

or agencies thereof or any body politic). 

When a membership is held jointly by a married couple, either one, but not both, may be 

elected a director, provided, however, that neither one shall be eligible to become or remain a 

director or to hold a position of trust in the Cooperative, unless both shall meet the qualifications 

hereinabove set forth. 

Nothing contained in this section shall, or shall be construed to, affect in any manner 

whatsoever the validity of any action taken at any meeting of the board of directors. 

Section 3.  Nominations.  It shall be the duty of the board of directors to appoint, not less 

than ninety (90) days nor more than two hundred (200) days before the date of a meeting of the 

members at which directors are to be elected, a committee on nominations consisting of not less 

than five nor more than eleven members who shall be selected from different sections of the project 

area so as to insure equitable representation. No member of the board of directors may serve on 

such committee. 

The committee, keeping in mind the principle of geographical representation, shall prepare 

and post at the principal office of the Cooperative at least sixty (60) days before the meeting a list 

of nominations for directors, comprised of at least two nominees per vacancy from each region or 

area of the Cooperative having one or more vacancies on the board. Any fifteen or more members 

acting together may make other nominations by petition not less than forty-five (45) days prior to 

the meeting and the Secretary shall post such nominations at the same place the list of nominations 

made by the committee is posted. The Secretary shall mail with the notice of the meeting or 

separately, but at least seven days before the date of the meeting, a statement of the number of 

directors to be elected and the names and addresses of the candidates, specifying separately the 

nominations made by the committee on nominations and also the nominations made by petition, if 

any. Additional nominations made by petition shall be for the respective region having vacancies 

on the board to be filled at the annual election. At the meeting, members shall each cast one vote 

for every vacancy in each region. If, for example, there are two vacancies in the Northern Region, 

each member may cast one vote for each of two nominees on the list, for a total of two votes. The 

52

millief
Oval



nominee, or in the case of multiple vacancies, nominees, in each region receiving the most votes 

cast shall be deemed elected to the board of directors. In the multiple vacancy example, that would 

mean that the nominee receiving the most, and the nominee receiving the second most votes would 

become directors. Notwithstanding anything contained in this section, failure to comply with any 

of the provisions of this section shall not affect in any manner whatsoever the validity of any 

election of directors. 

Such regions and the area of each such region are numbered and defined as follows: 

1. Northern Region 

Schoharie County – Towns of Gilboa, Jefferson and Summit 

Delaware County – Towns of Davenport, Harpersfield and Stamford 

Otsego County – Town of Maryland 

2. Central Region  

Delaware County – Towns of Bovina, Delhi, Franklin, Hamden, Kortright and 

Meredith 

3. Southern Region 

Delaware County – Towns of Andes, Colchester, Masonville, Middletown, Sidney, 

Tompkins and Walton. 

Chenango County – Town of Bainbridge 

Section 4.  Removal of Directors by Members.  Any member may bring charges against a 

director by filing such charges in writing with the Secretary, together with a petition signed by at 

least ten per centum of the members and request the removal of such director by reason thereof. 

The director against whom such charges have been brought shall be informed in writing of the 

charges at least five days prior to the meeting at which the charges are to be considered and shall 

have an opportunity at the meeting to be heard in person or by counsel and to present evidence in 

respect to the charges; and the person or persons bringing the charges against him or her shall have 

the same opportunity. The question of the removal of such director shall be considered and voted 

upon at the next regular or special meeting of the members and any vacancy created by such 

removal may be filled by vote of the members at such meeting without compliance with the 

foregoing provisions with respect to nominations. 

Section 5.  Removal of Directors by the Board of Directors.  The majority of the board of 

directors, acting pursuant to a duly made and seconded motion at a duly noticed regular or special 

meeting of the board of directors, may remove a director from the board if that director has failed 

to meet an objective qualification or requirement prescribed by these bylaws.  The director against 

whom such charges have been brought shall be informed in writing of the charges at least five 

days prior to the meeting at which the charges are to be considered and shall have an opportunity 

at the meeting to be heard in person or by counsel and to present evidence in respect to the charges. 

53



 
 
 

 POLICY 
 

 
SUBJECT: Compensation for Board of Directors 
 
POLICY: Management of the business and affairs of the Cooperative requires talented leadership 

at the Board level, as well as a significant commitment of time and resources by 
individual Board members.  Section 6 of Article IV of the Cooperative’s Bylaws 
authorizes payment of compensation for Board members.  Therefore, consistent with 
the Cooperative’s Bylaws, this policy establishes the standards and methods for paying 
such compensation and the conditions applying thereto, as follows: 
 
1. Compensation of Board members shall be set as follows:   
 

A. Board members shall be paid a fixed sum in the amount of $300.00 for 
each day or portion thereof (“per diem compensation”) spent on 
Cooperative Business, which Cooperative Business shall include, but 
not be limited to, attendance at meetings, conferences, and training 
programs or performing committee assignments as authorized by the 
Board.   

 
B. In addition to the compensation set forth in paragraph 1(A) above, 

Board members serving the Cooperative as an officer shall be paid an 
additional $25.00 in per diem compensation.   

 
C. In addition to the compensation set forth in paragraph 1(A) and, as 

applicable, paragraph 1(B) above, Board members serving the 
Cooperative who have received NRECA Cooperative Credentialed 
Director (CCD) accreditation and who maintain such accreditation, 
shall be paid an additional $50.00 in per diem compensation. 

 
D. The Board may designate certain director activities as “Short 

Activities” at their sole discretion and based on any criteria they 
choose by recording a Board vote in the minutes of any Regular 
Meeting or Special Meeting of the Board.  Board members shall be 
paid a fixed sum in the amount of $100.00 (“Short Activity 
Compensation”) for each Short Activity in which he or she 
participates on behalf of the Cooperative as authorized by the Board.  
Amounts set forth in paragraphs 1(A), 1(B) and 1(C) shall not apply to 
Short Activities. 

 
2. In applying this Policy, the following standards will be observed: 
 

A. Where travel is required on a day prior or subsequent to a meeting, 
conference, training program or other authorized activity, a Board 

54



 
member shall be eligible to be paid per diem compensation for each 
such day of travel in accordance with this Policy Bulletin.   

 
B. Although two or more meetings or activities (e.g., the annual meeting 

of the members and the regular meeting of the Board of Directors 
immediately following), or a combination of travel and one or more 
meetings or activities, may occur on a single day, only one per diem 
compensation for that day will be allowed. 

 
C. No per diem compensation shall be provided to any Board member for 

time spent in preparation for a Board or committee meeting, regardless 
of whether such preparation occurs on a day other than the one on 
which the meeting occurs.   

 
3. Payment of the amount provided for in paragraphs 1(A), (B), (C), and (D) 

above, as applicable, shall be made by the Cooperative directly to the Board 
member in accordance with the following procedure: 
A. Payments shall be made quarterly. 
 
B. Attendance at Regular Meetings, Special Meetings, and Committee 

Meetings of the Board shall be recorded in the minutes for such 
meetings.  The attendance record within the minutes for such meetings 
shall be the basis for paying per diems and “Standard Mileage 
Reimbursement” to each Director in attendance at the meeting so long 
as such meetings take place at the Cooperative’s headquarters on 
Depot Elm Street in Delhi, NY.  Standard Mileage Reimbursement 
shall consist of reimbursement for the number of miles from the 
Director’s place of residence to the Cooperative’s headquarters and 
back to the Director’s place of residence.  Expense reports shall not be 
required for per diem payment or expense reimbursement for Regular 
Meetings or Special Meetings of the Board so long as those meetings 
take place at the Cooperative’s headquarters. 

 
C. For any activity that does not comply with the requirements of 

paragraph 3(B), an expense report shall be filed by the Director prior 
to payment of a per diem, Short Activity Payment, or reimbursement 
of expenses. 

 
4. For attending meetings and otherwise performing duties pursuant to 

authorization thereof by the Board, Board members shall be advanced or 
reimbursed their related expenses actually, necessarily and reasonably incurred 
and expended by them, in accordance with applicable IRS laws and/or 
regulations.   

 
5. All compensation paid under this Policy shall, if the total thereof by law 

requires such, be reported on applicable IRS Forms, including IRS Forms 
1099, a copy of the former being timely furnished to each Board member. 

 

55



 
6. The compensation structure for Board members as set forth in this policy will 

be reviewed, including a comparability analysis, on a periodic basis, but in any 
event upon: 
A. Any proposed increase in Board member compensation; 
 
B. Any material changes in Cooperative business or finances, including 

any material change in gross annual revenues or in costs; and 
  
C. Any material changes in Board member responsibilities.   
 

7.  Any deviation from this policy regarding director attendance and/or 
participation in meetings other than regular board meetings (including travel 
time), including conference calls, committee meetings, industry conferences 
and other similar meetings shall be discussed and approved by the Board on a 
case-by-case basis with the decision documented in minutes to the Board 
meeting during which the decision is made. 

 
RESPONSIBILITY:   BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

DELAWARE COUNTY ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC. 
Approved by Board of Directors………………..Mar 28, 1961 
Revised by Board of Directors………………….Jul 21, 1971 
Revised by Board of Directors………………….Aug 23, 1983 
Revised by Board of Directors………………….Sep 23, 1986 
Revised by Board of Directors………………….Jul 25, 1989 
Revised by Board of Directors………………….Jan 26, 1993 
Revised by Board of Directors………………….Jun 22, 1993 
Reviewed by Board of Directors…………….….Jan 24, 1995 
Revised by Board of Directors………………….May 28, 2002 effective Sept 1, 2002 
Revised by Board of Directors………………….Aug 20, 2002 
Reviewed by Board of Directors………………..Nov 25, 2003  
Revised by Board of Directors………….............Jul 24, 2006 effective July 25, 2006 
Revised by Board of Directors ………………....Mar 27, 2012 
Revised by Board of Directors………….............Jan 22, 2013 
Revised by Board of Directors………………….Jul 28, 2015 
Reviewed by Board of Directors……...………..Sep 25, 2017 
Reviewed by Board of Directors………………...March 23, 2021 

56



Updated 3/18/2021

Description

2017 YE Actuals 2018 YE Actuals 2019 YE Actuals 2020 Budget 2020 YE Actuals
2021 Proposed 

Budget

1 Operating Revenue and Patronage Capital 8,551,235$          9,075,031$          8,826,863$          9,324,366$            8,804,603$             9,495,749$                

2 Power Production Expense -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                       -$                        -$                           

3 Cost of Purchased Power 1,772,292$          2,083,467$          1,940,974$          2,671,925$            2,028,569$             2,718,927$                

4 Transmission Expense -$                     -$                       -$                        -$                           

6 Distribution Expense-Operation 1,301,385$          1,382,622$          1,375,772$          1,436,650$            1,287,892$             1,384,246$                

7 Distribution Expense-Maintenance 1,547,207$          1,596,166$          1,764,369$          1,525,463$            1,515,518$             1,525,581$                

8 Customer Accounts Expense 242,596$             258,421$             253,591$             315,813$               246,194$                316,720$                   

9 Customer Service and Information Expense 16,469$               32,315$               10,862$               20,842$                 12,373$                  26,686$                     

10 Sales Expense 2,177$                  1,696$                  -$                     2,651$                   227$                       2,513$                       

11 Administrative and General Expense 1,110,914$          1,162,375$          1,471,617$          1,301,141$            1,465,311$             1,314,420$                

12 Total Operation & Maintenance Expense 5,993,040$          6,517,062$          6,817,185$          7,274,485$            6,556,084$             7,289,093$                

A13 Depreciation & Maintenance Expense 942,687$             996,431$             978,005$             1,000,815$            1,020,657$             1,124,408$                

14 Tax Expense-Property & Gross Receipts 4,073$                  4,075$                  4,000$                  4,000$                   4,069$                    4,000$                       

15 Tax Expense-Other -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                       -$                        -$                           

A16 Interest on Long-Term Debt 648,071$             610,010$             602,156$             516,027$               523,139$                473,300$                   

17 Interest Charged to Construction-Credit -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                       -$                        -$                           

18 Interest Expense-other 703$                     449$                     312$                     14,550$                 3,903$                    300$                          

19 Other Deductions 288,725$             406,539$             300$                     -$                       -$                        -$                           

20 Total Cost of Electric Service 7,877,299$          8,534,567$          8,401,958$          8,809,877$            8,107,851$             8,891,101$                

A21 Patronage Capital & Operating Margins 673,936$             540,464$             424,905$             514,489$               696,751$                604,648$                   

22 Non Operating Margins-Interest 89,583$               112,586$             124,948$             53,078$                 57,320$                  10,800$                     

23 Allowance for Funds Used During Construction -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                       -$                        -$                           

24 Income (Loss) from Equity Investments -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                       -$                        -$                           

25 Non Operating Margins-Other 11,449$               2,050$                  36,740$               12,400$                 29,379$                  3,600$                       

A26 Generation and Transmission Capital Credits -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                       -$                        -$                           

A27 Other Capital Credits and Patronage Dividends 39,819$               40,707$               30,785$               41,800$                 31,968$                  30,650$                     

28 Extraordinary Items -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                       126,682$                -$                           

A29 Patronage Capital or Margins 814,787$             695,806$             617,378$             621,767$               942,101$                649,698$                   

TIER (1.25 required) 2.26                      2.14                      2.03                      2.13                       2.80                        2.37                           

OTIER (1.10 required) 2.06                      1.90                      1.73                      2.01                       2.35                        2.34                           
 DSC (1.25 required) 1.57                      1.47                      1.43                      1.52                       1.62                        1.62                           

ODSD (1.10 required) 1.48                      1.38                      1.32                      1.47                       1.54                        1.61                           

MDSC (1.35 required) 1.53                      1.45                      1.40                      1.48                       1.58                        1.60                           

Equity As A % of Assets 36.16% 36.95% 37.32% 35.95% 34.59% 35.93%

Annual Capital Credit Retirement 300,744$             516,959$             378,454$             380,000$               460,083$                410,000$                   

Special Capital Credit Retirements 102,768$             87,974$               89,817$               100,000$               69,509$                  100,000$                   

LFG or FAS106 Write-Down Acceleration 120,000$             237,900$             -$                     -$                       -$                        -$                           

Total New Debt (not accounting for principal payoffs) 875,000$             3,000,000$            3,517,000$             -$                           

Reduction in Total Debt (excludes COC) 379,221$             931,523$             54,871$               (2,127,712)$          (2,640,332)$            913,015$                   

Year 2017 YE Actuals 2018 YE Actuals 2019 YE Actuals 2020 Budget 2020 YE Actuals
2021 Proposed 

Budget

Total Debt Service 1,541,491$        1,525,064$        1,535,186$        1,394,898$         1,456,818$          1,386,315$             
Cash portion-prior year patronage capital rcvd 9,934$               9,600$               15,771$             9,600$                 9,600$                  9,600$                     
Total Margins & Equities on December 31 9,953,660$        10,097,176$      10,344,064$      10,585,831$       11,027,413$        10,841,487$           
Total Assets on December 31 27,525,451$      27,324,455$      27,720,066$      29,806,991$       29,806,991$        30,172,563$           

Income Statement (Statement of Operations) Multi-Year Comparison

57



Revisions Applied to the December Approved 2021 Budget    3/18/21 

- Fix Employee Benefit error (retirement) 

 

- Add cost for fence around retention basin 

o Added to Financial Budget and the Capital Budget 

 

- Add cost for Credential training on Director Budget 

o Added to Financial Budget and Director Budget 

 

- Remove NEAEC meeting cost and add to capital budget towards substation security 

o Added to Financial Budget and the Capital Budget 

 

 

 

58



2021 Capital Budget 18-Mar-21

Expenditure Proposed Budget Expended Remaining Comments General Plant Expenses 900's Expense 583.1

Radio repeater - Johnson Hill (Town of Franklin) $5,500 $5,500 $0 $5,500 5,500$        

Truck 80 Freightliner Chassis AM 55E replacing Truck 62 with Additional Customization $284,000 $284,000 $0 $284,000 284,000$    
Truck 63 Replacement K3500 single rear wheel with Customizations $57,000 $57,000 $0 $57,000 57,000$      
Electric Car Bank Post Office, General Travel $40,000 $40,000 $40,000 40,000$      
Snow Plow for Truck 73 and larger salter $9,000 $9,000 $9,000 9,000$        

Chainsaws (2) ROW Crew $2,400 $2,400 $0 $2,400 2,400$        
Tyvek truck maps $2,250 $2,250 $0 $2,250 2,250$            
Fleet tools $10,000 $10,000 $0 $10,000 6,700$        3,300$            
Snap-On Heavy Duty Scanner $8,025 $8,025 $0 $8,025 8,025$        
STIHL CHAINSAW $1,400 $1,400 $0 $1,400 $1,400
1/2" DEWALT 20V IMPACT $250 $250 $0 $250 $250
7/16" HEX DEWALT 20V IMPACT $550 $550 $0 $550 $550
DEWALT 20V FENCE STAPLER $570 $570 $0 $570 $570
DEWALT 20V GRINDER $355 $355 $0 $355 $355
DEWALT 20V CIRCULAR SAW $200 $200 $0 $200 $200
DEWALT 20V IMPACT,DRILL,SAWZALL,FLASHLIGHT KIT $860 $860 $0 $860 $860
DEWALT 20V 4 BAY CHARGER $345 $345 $0 $345 $345
DEWALT 20V FLEXVOLT BATTERY 2PK $760 $760 $0 $760 $760
STANLEY PRESS TOOLS W/D3&O, ACSR CUTTER, GUY WIRE CUTTER HEADS $21,000 $21,000 $0 $21,000 $21,000
LITTLE MULE GRIPS LMG4500 $3,000 $3,000 $0 $3,000 $3,000
GREENLEE #HDFBC24 24"FIBERGLASS HANDLE BOLT CUTTER $690 $690 $0 $690 $690
10'X10' TWIST TARP #10X10R $500 $500 $0 $500 $500
OSHKOSH 8' WOOD HANDLE HEAVY TAMP #1055 $220 $220 $0 $220 $220
OSHKOSH 8' STRAIGHT SHOVEL $230 $230 $0 $230 $230
OSHKOSH 8'SPOON $230 $230 $0 $230 $230
STANLEY HYDRAULIC TAMP TA54 79-TA54103 $1,750 $1,750 $0 $1,750 $1,750
BASHLIN AUGER SLINGS $320 $320 $0 $320 $320
DICA 24"X24" OUTRIGGER PADS #D2424 $680 $680 $0 $680 $680
DICA 18"X18" OUTRIGGER PADS #D1818 $450 $450 $0 $450 $450
MILWAUKEE 5IN1 RATCHETING LINEMANS WRENCH $1,100 $1,100 $0 $1,100 $1,100
MILWAUKEE HOT STICK LIGHT $920 $920 $0 $920 $920
LOTO POLE WRAP $185 $185 $0 $185 $185
BUCKLINK SLINGS W/CARABINER #39035-6 $1,400 $1,400 $0 $1,400 $1,400
BASHLIN 52" GRIPPING POLE SLING #2011SE-52G $280 $280 $0 $280 $280
SILKY ZUBAT 330 HAND SAW 270-33 $320 $320 $0 $320 $320
SAMPSON TREE MASTER 1/2" 3-STRAND ROPE 600' SPOOL TMR-600-NS $420 $420 $0 $420 $420
OX BLOCK HANDLINE SET UPS $4,800 $4,800 $0 $4,800 $4,800
OX BLOCK  W/SWIVEL HOOK, 1/2"X80' ROPE, CHANCE HOOK $0 0 $0 0
BUCK TOOL STRAP 24 $380 $380 $0 $380 $380
BUCKEYE TOOL HOOK 2410 $160 $160 $0 $160 $160
BUCKET KNUCKLES $600 $600 $0 $600 $600
MILWAUKEE BEACON RECHARGABLE HARDHAT LIGHT $1,000 $1,000 $0 $1,000 $1,000
STREAMLIGHT FIRE VULCAN FLASHLIGHTS $720 $720 $0 $720 $720
GOLIGHTS FOR RANGER/GATOR $1,300 $1,300 $0 $1,300 $1,300
WORK BENCH TOOLS AND TOOLBOX $1,000 $1,000 $0 $1,000 $1,000
SOKKIA RANGE POLE 3PC SET 12' $450 $450 $0 $450 $450
ROLATAPE32-600 MEASURING WHEEL $140 $140 $0 $140 $140
UTILITY SOLUTIONS USTS-HD-45 EXTENDOS $3,860 $3,860 $0 $3,860 $3,860
ROLLING WIRE COUNTER $775 $775 $0 $775 $775

NISC Server File Encryption $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000
New PC / Monitor Set up $3,600 $3,600 $3,600 $3,600
Headphoes for training (3) $500 $500 $500 $500
Monitors (6) $1,800 $1,800 $1,800 $1,800

Safety Improvement Plan Items $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000
Finish Cameras and Add Glass Break to Security System $3,438 $3,438 $3,438 $3,438
Security Measures for Subs- Camera system from Eastern Security (waiting for quote) $15,259 $15,259 $15,259 $15,259
Fence for Retention Basin $19,350 $19,350 $19,350 $19,350

Broken/Lost Tool Replacement Budget $15,000 $15,000 $0 $15,000 7,500$          7,500$              
General Manager discretionary / unplanned needs $7,500 $7,500 $0 $7,500 3,750$          3,750$                 
2021 TOTAL: 558,792$       558,792$                -$                558,792$           524,607$           6,050$                      28,135$                  

2020 (includes Headquarters Project) 2,151,131$               

2019 (includes property purchases on North Depot Street) 1,025,573$               

2018 328,168$                  

2017 452,180$                  

2016 392,509$                  

2015 395,113$                  

Vehicles/Large Equipment*

Tools

General Plant

Computers/Furnishings

Other

Headquarters

Capital Budget - 2021

59



Updated 2/20/21

Activity Location # Individuals Per Diem Reimburse Other  Budget 

Monthly Meetings Board Room 7 30,000$   1,421$       900$          32,321$             
NYAPP Meetings Albany 2 1,500$     48$            1,350$       2,898$               
NYAPP Annual Conference Albany Area 1 750$        24$            450$          1,224$               
NYSRECA Business Meetings Owego, elsewhere 3 3,375$     207$          -$           3,582$               
NYSRECA Annual Meeting TBD 4 1,500$     97$            -$           1,597$               
Northeast Meeting NY 0 -$         -$           -$           -$                   
NRECA National Mtg Online 4 4,275$     -$           1,400$       5,675$               
Legislative Rally-Net of Reimb Washington, DC 2 3,000$     200$          2,300$       5,500$               
CCD Courses Online 1 3,000$     -$           2,795$       5,795$               
NEAEC Director Training TBD 7 2,500$     480$          -$           2,980$               
Insurance Committee & Union Negotiations Delhi 1 375$        23$            -$           398$                  
Albany Advocacy Day Albany 2 1,500$     76$            -$           1,576$               
NRECA Region 1/4 Meeting Maryland 3 3,375$     259$          4,500$       8,134$               
CoBank-Facilitated Strategic Investigations (Spring) Delhi 7 2,500$     118$          225$          2,843$               
CFC-Facilitated Strategic Plan Update (Fall) Delhi 7 2,500$     116$          225$          2,841$               
Annual Meetings, Other Co-ops Various 0 -$         200$          -$           200$                  
Total for 2021 (Current) 60,150$   3,270$       14,145$     77,565$             
Total for 2020 (1 year ago) 84,938$             
Total for 2019 (2 years ago) 102,170$           
Total for 2018 (3 years ago) 83,281$             

2021 Director Budget 

60


	2. D. Director Compensation.pdf
	Summary
	Burnett
	Menke
	Oles
	Pick
	J. Russell
	Tosi
	Wehmeyer

	3. A. 2020 YE Financials.pdf
	tmp14999168279681933313.pdf
	-0001-0001
	1.00
	2.00
	3.00
	4.00
	5.00
	6.00
	7.00
	8.00
	9.00
	10.00
	11.00
	12.00
	13.00
	14.00
	15.00
	16.00
	17.00
	18.00
	19.00
	20.00
	21.00
	22.00
	23.00
	24.00
	25.00
	26.00
	27.00
	28.00
	29.00
	30.00
	31.00
	32.00
	33.00
	34.00


	tmp3110933455621472512
	-0001-0001
	A
	1.00
	2.00
	3.00
	4.00
	5.00
	6.00
	7.00
	8.00
	9.00
	10.00
	11.00
	12.00
	13.00
	14.00
	15.00
	16.00
	17.00
	18.00
	19.00
	20.00
	21.00
	22.00
	23.00
	24.00
	25.00
	26.00
	27.00
	28.00
	29.00
	30.00



	tmp3110933455621472512.pdf
	-0001-0001
	A
	31.00
	32.00
	33.00
	34.00
	35.00
	36.00
	37.00
	38.00
	39.00
	40.00
	41.00
	42.00
	43.00
	44.00
	45.00
	46.00
	47.00
	48.00
	49.00
	50.00
	51.00
	52.00
	53.00
	54.00
	55.00
	56.00
	57.00
	58.00
	59.00



	tmp3357891379867883141.pdf
	A
	 0000 0101.120000
	101.12

	 0000 0101.160000
	101.16

	 0000 0104.000000
	104.0

	 0000 0107.200000
	107.2

	 0000 0107.300000
	107.3

	 0000 0107.500000
	107.5

	 0000 0108.400000
	108.4

	 0000 0108.600000
	108.6

	 0000 0108.610000
	108.61

	 0000 0108.710000
	108.71

	 0000 0108.711000
	108.711

	 0000 0108.720000
	108.72

	 0000 0108.730000
	108.73

	 0000 0108.740000
	108.74

	 0000 0108.750000
	108.75

	 0000 0108.760000
	108.76

	 0000 0108.761000
	108.761

	 0000 0108.770000
	108.77

	 0000 0108.780000
	108.78

	 0000 0108.790000
	108.79

	 0000 0108.791000
	108.791

	 0000 0108.800000
	108.8

	 0000 0121.000000
	121.0

	 0000 0121.100000
	121.1

	 0000 0122.100000
	122.1

	 0000 0123.000000
	123.0

	 0000 0123.020000
	123.02

	 0000 0123.100000
	123.1

	 0000 0123.220000
	123.22

	 0000 0123.230000
	123.23

	 0000 0123.300000
	123.3

	 0000 0123.400000
	123.4

	 0000 0123.450000
	123.45

	 0000 0123.460000
	123.46

	 0000 0123.500000
	123.5

	 0000 0123.600000
	123.6

	 0000 0123.700000
	123.7

	 0000 0123.710000
	123.71

	 0000 0123.800000
	123.8

	 0000 0123.900000
	123.9

	 0000 0124.000000
	124.0

	 0000 0124.300000
	124.3

	 0000 0125.000000
	125.0

	 0000 0131.100000
	131.1

	 0000 0131.200000
	131.2

	 0000 0131.300000
	131.3

	 0000 0131.500000
	131.5

	 0000 0131.600000
	131.6

	 0000 0131.700000
	131.7

	 0000 0131.800000
	131.8

	 0000 0131.990000
	131.99

	 0000 0135.000000
	135.0

	 0000 0135.100000
	135.1

	 0000 0136.000000
	136.0

	 0000 0136.200000
	136.2

	 0000 0136.300000
	136.3

	 0000 0142.000000
	142.0

	 0000 0142.100000
	142.1

	 0000 0142.110000
	142.11

	 0000 0142.200000
	142.2

	 0000 0142.990000
	142.99

	 0000 0143.100000
	143.1

	 0000 0143.150000
	143.15

	 0000 0143.200000
	143.2

	 0000 0143.300000
	143.3

	 0000 0143.400000
	143.4

	 0000 0143.500000
	143.5

	 0000 0143.600000
	143.6

	 0000 0143.700000
	143.7

	 0000 0143.800000
	143.8

	 0000 0143.900000
	143.9

	 0000 0143.910000
	143.91

	 0000 0143.920000
	143.92

	 0000 0144.100000
	144.1

	 0000 0144.150000
	144.15

	 0000 0144.200000
	144.2

	 0000 0144.300000
	144.3

	 0000 0145.000000
	145.0

	 0000 0154.000000
	154.0

	 0000 0154.100000
	154.1

	 0000 0155.000000
	155.0

	 0000 0155.100000
	155.1

	 0000 0155.200000
	155.2

	 0000 0163.000000
	163.0

	 0000 0165.100000
	165.1

	 0000 0165.110000
	165.11

	 0000 0165.120000
	165.12

	 0000 0165.150000
	165.15

	 0000 0165.200000
	165.2

	 0000 0165.210000
	165.21

	 0000 0165.220000
	165.22

	 0000 0165.300000
	165.3

	 0000 0165.310000
	165.31

	 0000 0165.400000
	165.4

	 0000 0165.410000
	165.41

	 0000 0165.500000
	165.5

	 0000 0165.600000
	165.6

	 0000 0165.700000
	165.7

	 0000 0165.800000
	165.8

	 0000 0165.810000
	165.81

	 0000 0165.850000
	165.85

	 0000 0165.900000
	165.9

	 0000 0171.000000
	171.0

	 0000 0173.000000
	173.0

	 0000 0182.300000
	182.3

	 0000 0182.310000
	182.31

	 0000 0184.100000
	184.1

	 0000 0184.200000
	184.2

	 0000 0184.220000
	184.22

	 0000 0184.300000
	184.3

	 0000 0184.310000
	184.31

	 0000 0184.400000
	184.4

	 0000 0186.000000
	186.0

	 0000 0186.050000
	186.05

	 0000 0186.100000
	186.1

	 0000 0186.300000
	186.3

	 0000 0186.400000
	186.4

	 0000 0186.500000
	186.5

	 0000 0186.600000
	186.6

	 0000 0186.610000
	186.61

	 0000 0187.000000
	187.0

	 0000 0189.000000
	189.0

	 0000 0200.100000
	200.1

	 0000 0200.110000
	200.11

	 0000 0200.200000
	200.2

	 0000 0201.100000
	201.1

	 0000 0201.150000
	201.15

	 0000 0201.200000
	201.2

	 0000 0208.000000
	208.0

	 0000 0208.100000
	208.1

	 0000 0208.200000
	208.2

	 0000 0217.000000
	217.0

	 0000 0217.790000
	217.79

	 0000 0217.800000
	217.8

	 0000 0217.820000
	217.82

	 0000 0217.830000
	217.83

	 0000 0217.840000
	217.84

	 0000 0217.850000
	217.85

	 0000 0217.860000
	217.86

	 0000 0217.870000
	217.87

	 0000 0217.880000
	217.88

	 0000 0217.890000
	217.89

	 0000 0217.900000
	217.9

	 0000 0217.910000
	217.91

	 0000 0217.920000
	217.92

	 0000 0217.930000
	217.93

	 0000 0217.940000
	217.94

	 0000 0217.950000
	217.95

	 0000 0217.960000
	217.96

	 0000 0217.970000
	217.97

	 0000 0217.980000
	217.98

	 0000 0218.000000
	218.0

	 0000 0219.100000
	219.1

	 0000 0219.200000
	219.2

	 0000 0219.400000
	219.4

	 0000 0224.110000
	224.11

	 0000 0224.120000
	224.12

	 0000 0224.140000
	224.14

	 0000 0224.160000
	224.16

	 0000 0224.170000
	224.17

	 0000 0224.300000
	224.3

	 0000 0224.400000
	224.4

	 0000 0224.500000
	224.5

	 0000 0224.600000
	224.6

	 0000 0224.700000
	224.7

	 0000 0227.120000
	227.12

	 0000 0227.160000
	227.16

	 0000 0231.000000
	231.0

	 0000 0231.100000
	231.1

	 0000 0231.200000
	231.2

	 0000 0232.100000
	232.1

	 0000 0232.200000
	232.2

	 0000 0232.210000
	232.21

	 0000 0232.300000
	232.3

	 0000 0232.400000
	232.4

	 0000 0232.500000
	232.5

	 0000 0232.510000
	232.51

	 0000 0232.600000
	232.6

	 0000 0232.700000
	232.7

	 0000 0232.990000
	232.99

	 0000 0235.000000
	235.0

	 0000 0235.100000
	235.1

	 0000 0236.100000
	236.1

	 0000 0236.200000
	236.2

	 0000 0236.300000
	236.3

	 0000 0236.400000
	236.4

	 0000 0236.500000
	236.5

	 0000 0236.700000
	236.7

	 0000 0236.800000
	236.8

	 0000 0236.810000
	236.81

	 0000 0236.820000
	236.82

	 0000 0236.900000
	236.9

	 0000 0237.100000
	237.1

	 0000 0237.150000
	237.15

	 0000 0237.200000
	237.2

	 0000 0237.300000
	237.3

	 0000 0237.400000
	237.4

	 0000 0237.500000
	237.5

	 0000 0237.600000
	237.6

	 0000 0238.000000
	238.0

	 0000 0238.100000
	238.1

	 0000 0238.500000
	238.5

	 0000 0238.580000
	238.58

	 0000 0238.590000
	238.59

	 0000 0238.600000
	238.6

	 0000 0238.610000
	238.61

	 0000 0238.620000
	238.62

	 0000 0238.630000
	238.63

	 0000 0238.640000
	238.64

	 0000 0238.650000
	238.65

	 0000 0238.660000
	238.66

	 0000 0238.670000
	238.67

	 0000 0238.680000
	238.68

	 0000 0238.690000
	238.69

	 0000 0238.700000
	238.7

	 0000 0238.710000
	238.71

	 0000 0238.720000
	238.72

	 0000 0238.730000
	238.73

	 0000 0238.740000
	238.74

	 0000 0238.750000
	238.75

	 0000 0238.760000
	238.76

	 0000 0238.770000
	238.77

	 0000 0238.780000
	238.78

	 0000 0238.790000
	238.79

	 0000 0238.800000
	238.8

	 0000 0238.810000
	238.81

	 0000 0238.820000
	238.82

	 0000 0238.830000
	238.83

	 0000 0241.100000
	241.1

	 0000 0241.200000
	241.2

	 0000 0241.300000
	241.3

	 0000 0241.500000
	241.5

	 0000 0241.600000
	241.6

	 0000 0242.100000
	242.1

	 0000 0242.200000
	242.2

	 0000 0242.300000
	242.3

	 0000 0242.400000
	242.4

	 0000 0242.410000
	242.41

	 0000 0242.440000
	242.44

	 0000 0242.500000
	242.5

	 0000 0242.510000
	242.51

	 0000 0242.600000
	242.6

	 0000 0242.700000
	242.7

	 0000 0242.710000
	242.71

	 0000 0242.750000
	242.75

	 0000 0242.800000
	242.8

	 0000 0242.900000
	242.9

	 0000 0242.910000
	242.91

	 0000 0243.000000
	243.0

	 0000 0253.000000
	253.0

	 0000 0253.100000
	253.1

	 0000 0253.200000
	253.2

	 0000 0253.300000
	253.3

	 0000 0301.000000
	301.0

	 0000 0360.000000
	360.0

	 0000 0362.000000
	362.0

	 0000 0364.000000
	364.0

	 0000 0365.000000
	365.0

	 0000 0365.100000
	365.1

	 0000 0365.200000
	365.2

	 0000 0367.000000
	367.0

	 0000 0368.000000
	368.0

	 0000 0368.100000
	368.1

	 0000 0369.000000
	369.0

	 0000 0370.000000
	370.0

	 0000 0371.000000
	371.0

	 0000 0389.000000
	389.0

	 0000 0390.000000
	390.0

	 0000 0391.000000
	391.0

	 0000 0391.100000
	391.1

	 0000 0392.000000
	392.0

	 0000 0393.000000
	393.0

	 0000 0394.000000
	394.0

	 0000 0395.000000
	395.0

	 0000 0396.000000
	396.0

	 0000 0397.000000
	397.0

	 0000 0398.000000
	398.0

	 0000 0403.600000
	403.6

	 0000 0403.700000
	403.7

	 0000 0403.800000
	403.8

	 0000 0408.000000
	408.0

	 0000 0408.100000
	408.1

	 0000 0408.200000
	408.2

	 0000 0408.300000
	408.3

	 0000 0408.400000
	408.4

	 0000 0408.800000
	408.8

	 0000 0412.000000
	412.0

	 0000 0412.100000
	412.1

	 0000 0413.000000
	413.0

	 0000 0413.100000
	413.1

	 0000 0414.000000
	414.0

	 0000 0415.000000
	415.0

	 0000 0415.100000
	415.1

	 0000 0415.200000
	415.2

	 0000 0415.400000
	415.4

	 0000 0415.500000
	415.5

	 0000 0416.000000
	416.0

	 0000 0416.100000
	416.1

	 0000 0416.110000
	416.11

	 0000 0416.200000
	416.2

	 0000 0416.220000
	416.22

	 0000 0416.300000
	416.3

	 0000 0416.400000
	416.4

	 0000 0416.500000
	416.5

	 0000 0418.000000
	418.0

	 0000 0418.100000
	418.1

	 0000 0419.000000
	419.0

	 0000 0419.300000
	419.3

	 0000 0421.000000
	421.0

	 0000 0421.100000
	421.1

	 0000 0421.200000
	421.2

	 0000 0421.300000
	421.3

	 0000 0424.000000
	424.0

	 0000 0425.000000
	425.0

	 0000 0426.000000
	426.0

	 0000 0426.100000
	426.1

	 0000 0426.500000
	426.5

	 0000 0427.100000
	427.1

	 0000 0427.150000
	427.15

	 0000 0427.200000
	427.2

	 0000 0427.250000
	427.25

	 0000 0427.300000
	427.3

	 0000 0427.400000
	427.4

	 0000 0427.500000
	427.5

	 0000 0428.100000
	428.1

	 0000 0431.000000
	431.0

	 0000 0434.000000
	434.0

	 0000 0435.000000
	435.0

	 0000 0440.100000
	440.1

	 0000 0440.200000
	440.2

	 0000 0442.100000
	442.1

	 0000 0442.110000
	442.11

	 0000 0442.200000
	442.2

	 0000 0442.300000
	442.3

	 0000 0443.000000
	443.0

	 0000 0445.000000
	445.0

	 0000 0450.000000
	450.0

	 0000 0451.000000
	451.0

	 0000 0451.400000
	451.4

	 0000 0454.000000
	454.0

	 0000 0456.000000
	456.0

	 0000 0456.100000
	456.1

	 0000 0457.000000
	457.0

	 0000 0457.500000
	457.5

	 0000 0548.000000
	548.0

	 0000 0549.000000
	549.0

	 0000 0550.000000
	550.0

	 0000 0551.000000
	551.0

	 0000 0555.000000
	555.0

	 0000 0557.000000
	557.0

	 0000 0557.100000
	557.1

	 0000 0580.000000
	580.0

	 0000 0580.100000
	580.1

	 0000 0581.000000
	581.0

	 0000 0581.100000
	581.1

	 0000 0581.110000
	581.11

	 0000 0581.200000
	581.2

	 0000 0581.300000
	581.3

	 0000 0582.000000
	582.0

	 0000 0583.000000
	583.0

	 0000 0583.050000
	583.05

	 0000 0583.100000
	583.1

	 0000 0583.200000
	583.2

	 0000 0583.900000
	583.9

	 0000 0584.000000
	584.0

	 0000 0586.000000
	586.0

	 0000 0586.100000
	586.1

	 0000 0586.110000
	586.11

	 0000 0586.200000
	586.2

	 0000 0586.300000
	586.3

	 0000 0586.310000
	586.31

	 0000 0587.000000
	587.0

	 0000 0587.100000
	587.1

	 0000 0588.000000
	588.0

	 0000 0588.100000
	588.1

	 0000 0588.200000
	588.2

	 0000 0588.300000
	588.3

	 0000 0588.700000
	588.7

	 0000 0589.000000
	589.0

	 0000 0590.000000
	590.0

	 0000 0590.100000
	590.1

	 0000 0592.000000
	592.0

	 0000 0592.100000
	592.1

	 0000 0593.000000
	593.0

	 0000 0593.100000
	593.1

	 0000 0593.110000
	593.11

	 0000 0593.120000
	593.12

	 0000 0593.130000
	593.13

	 0000 0593.140000
	593.14

	 0000 0593.200000
	593.2

	 0000 0593.210000
	593.21

	 0000 0593.900000
	593.9

	 0000 0594.000000
	594.0

	 0000 0595.000000
	595.0

	 0000 0597.000000
	597.0

	 0000 0598.000000
	598.0

	 0000 0902.000000
	902.0

	 0000 0902.100000
	902.1

	 0000 0903.000000
	903.0

	 0000 0903.100000
	903.1

	 0000 0904.000000
	904.0

	 0000 0908.000000
	908.0

	 0000 0909.000000
	909.0

	 0000 0909.100000
	909.1

	 0000 0912.000000
	912.0

	 0000 0920.000000
	920.0

	 0000 0920.100000
	920.1

	 0000 0920.150000
	920.15

	 0000 0920.200000
	920.2

	 0000 0920.300000
	920.3

	 0000 0920.400000
	920.4

	 0000 0920.500000
	920.5

	 0000 0920.600000
	920.6

	 0000 0920.700000
	920.7

	 0000 0920.800000
	920.8

	 0000 0920.900000
	920.9

	 0000 0921.000000
	921.0

	 0000 0921.050000
	921.05

	 0000 0921.100000
	921.1

	 0000 0921.200000
	921.2

	 0000 0922.000000
	922.0

	 0000 0923.000000
	923.0

	 0000 0923.100000
	923.1

	 0000 0923.200000
	923.2

	 0000 0923.300000
	923.3

	 0000 0924.000000
	924.0

	 0000 0925.000000
	925.0

	 0000 0925.100000
	925.1

	 0000 0926.000000
	926.0

	 0000 0926.100000
	926.1

	 0000 0926.200000
	926.2

	 0000 0926.400000
	926.4

	 0000 0926.500000
	926.5

	 0000 0926.600000
	926.6

	 0000 0929.000000
	929.0

	 0000 0929.500000
	929.5

	 0000 0929.600000
	929.6

	 0000 0929.700000
	929.7

	 0000 0930.000000
	930.0

	 0000 0930.050000
	930.05

	 0000 0930.100000
	930.1

	 0000 0930.150000
	930.15

	 0000 0930.200000
	930.2

	 0000 0930.210000
	930.21

	 0000 0930.300000
	930.3

	 0000 0930.400000
	930.4

	 0000 0930.500000
	930.5

	 0000 0930.600000
	930.6

	 0000 0930.700000
	930.7

	 0000 0930.800000
	930.8

	 0000 0930.900000
	930.9

	 0000 0932.000000
	932.0

	 0000 0932.100000
	932.1

	 0000 0935.000000
	935.0

	 0000 0935.100000
	935.1

	 0000 0998.000000
	998.0

	 0000 0999.000000
	999.0

	 0000 0999.990000
	999.99




	3. C. and D. Monthly Financials_January.pdf
	January IS
	January BS

	3. E. and F. Monthly Financials_February.pdf
	February IS
	February BS




